
Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 61 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 65 of 189



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 62 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 – 26 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 5307 MARKET STREET  

TO KIFLEYE LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 5307 Market Street  (the “Property”) to Kifleye LLC (the “Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Seventy-Five Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($75,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 66 of 189



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 63 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 67 of 189



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 64 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 68 of 189



Exhibit H 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 65 of 145 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 69 of 189



Exhibit H 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 66 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 70 of 189



Exhibit H 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 67 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 71 of 189



Exhibit I 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 68 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 – 27 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 3833 BROWN STREET, 3915 BROWN 

STREET, 735 N. DEKALB STREET, 3605 MELON STREET, 3517 MOUNT VERNON STREET, 

524 N. 35TH STREET, 740 N. 38TH STREET, 765 N. 38TH STREET, AND 839 N. 39TH STREET TO 

BLA HOLDINGS LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 3833 Brown Street, 3915 Brown Street 735 N. DeKalb Street, 3605 Melon 

Street, 3517 Mount Vernon Street, 524 N. 35th Street, 740 N. 38th Street, 765 N. 38th Street, and 839 N. 

39th Street (collectively, the “Property”) to BLA Holdings LLC (the “Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Nine Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($9,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 72 of 189



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 69 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 73 of 189



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 70 of 145 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 74 of 189



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 71 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 75 of 189



Exhibit K 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 72 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 – 28 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

3914, 3917, 3927, 3935, 3936-38, 3937, 3940, 3946 AND 3948 FOLSOM STREET  

TO GIL PROPERTY GROUP LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 3914, 3917, 3927, 3935, 3936-38, 3937, 3940, 3946 and 3948 Folsom Street 

(collectively, the “Property”) to Gil Property Group LLC (the “Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for One Hundred and 00/100 U.S. Dollars ($100.00) 

is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by resolution of 

Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 76 of 189



Exhibit L 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 73 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 77 of 189



Exhibit L 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 74 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 78 of 189



Exhibit L 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 75 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 79 of 189



Exhibit M 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 76 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 – 29 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 3539 ASPEN STREET, 3624 BROWN 

STREET, 610 N. SHEDWICK STREET, 612 N. SHEDWICK STREET, 614 N. SHEDWICK 

STREET, 3405 WALLACE STREET, 3830 WALLACE STREET, 3832 WALLACE STREET, 682 

N. 33RD STREET, AND 620 N. 35TH STREET TO NORTHWEST DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 3539 Aspen Street, 3624 Brown Street, 610 N. Shedwick Street, 612 N. 

Shedwick Street, 614 N. Shedwick Street, 3405 Wallace Street, 3830 Wallace Street, 3832 Wallace Street, 

682 N. 33rd Street, and 620 N. 35th Street (collectively, the “Property”) to Northwest Development 

Group LLC (the “Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Ten Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($10,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 80 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 77 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 81 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 78 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 82 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 79 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 83 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 80 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 84 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 81 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 85 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 82 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 86 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 83 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 87 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 84 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 88 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 85 of 145 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 89 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 86 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 90 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 87 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 91 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 88 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 92 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 89 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 93 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 90 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 94 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 91 of 145 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 95 of 189



Exhibit N 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 92 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 96 of 189



Exhibit O 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 93 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 – 30 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 3841 MELON STREET, 3843 MELON 

STREET, 3858 MOUNT VERNON STREET, 642 UNION STREET, 647 UNION STREET,  

658 UNION STREET, 3903 WALLACE STREET, 3905 WALLACE STREET, 3907 WALLACE 

STREET, AND 3930 WALLACE STREET TO PROJECT IV LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 3841 Melon Street, 3843 Melon Street, 3858 Mount Vernon Street, 642 

Union Street, 647 Union Street, 658 Union Street, 3903 Wallace Street, 3905 Wallace Street, 3907 

Wallace Street, and 3930 Wallace Street (collectively, the “Property”) to Project IV LLC (the 

“Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for One Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($1,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 97 of 189



Exhibit P 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 94 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 98 of 189



Exhibit P 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 95 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 99 of 189



Exhibit P 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 96 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 100 of 189



Exhibit P 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 97 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 101 of 189



Exhibit P 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 98 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 102 of 189



Exhibit P 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 99 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 103 of 189



Exhibit Q 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 100 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 – 31 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 3607 MELON STREET, 3830 MELON 

STREET, 3832 MELON STREET, 3837 MOUNT VERNON STREET, 3917 MOUNT VERNON 

STREET, 3938 MOUNT VERNON STREET, 3940 MOUNT VERNON STREET, 3944 MOUNT 

VERNON STREET, AND 612 UNION STREET TO ROSARIO ESTATES LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 3607 Melon Street, 3830 Melon Street, 3832 Melon Street, 3837 Mount 

Vernon Street, 3917 Mount Vernon Street, 3938 Mount Vernon Street, 3940 Mount Vernon Street, 3944 

Mount Vernon Street, and 612 Union Street (collectively, the “Property”) to Rosario Estates LLC (the 

“Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Ten Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($10,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 104 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 101 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 105 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 102 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 106 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 103 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 107 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 104 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 108 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 105 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 109 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 106 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 110 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 107 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 111 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 108 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 112 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 109 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 113 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 110 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 114 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 111 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 115 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 112 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 116 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 113 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 117 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 114 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 118 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 115 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 119 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 116 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 120 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 117 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 121 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 118 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 122 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 119 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 123 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 120 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 124 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 121 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 125 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 122 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 126 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 123 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 127 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 124 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 128 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 125 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 129 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 126 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 130 of 189



Exhibit R 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 127 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 131 of 189



Exhibit S 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 128 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 – 32 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

2605, 2607, 2608, 2610 AND 2622 N. 29TH STREET  

TO JES CAPITAL INVESTMENTS LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 2605, 2607, 2608, 2610 and 2622 N. 29th Street (collectively, the 

“Property”) to JES Capital Investments LLC (the “Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Five Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($5,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 132 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 129 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 133 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 130 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 134 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 131 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 135 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 132 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 136 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 133 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 137 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 134 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 138 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 135 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 139 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 136 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 140 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 137 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 141 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 138 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 142 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 139 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 143 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 140 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 144 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 141 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 145 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 142 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 146 of 189



Exhibit T 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 143 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 147 of 189



Exhibit U 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 144 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 – 33 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 1766 N. BODINE STREET, 1768 N. 

BODINE STREET, 1770 N. BODINE STREET, 1772 N. BODINE STREET, 218 CECIL B. 

MOORE AVENUE, 2244 HOPE STREET AND 2246 HOPE STREET  

TO SEAMLESS DEVELOPMENT LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 

of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 1766 N. Bodine Street, 1768 N. Bodine Street, 1770 N. Bodine Street, 1772 

N. Bodine Street, 218 Cecil B. Moore Avenue, 2244 Hope Street, and 2246 Hope Street (collectively, the 

“Property”) to Seamless Development LLC (the “Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Seven Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($7,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 

time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 

them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 

Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 

Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 

binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 148 of 189



Exhibit U 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 145 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 – 34 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

1900 E. LEHIGH AVENUE TO QUAY PHONG AND MUI A. PHONG 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 

“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of the Land 

Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, subject to approval 

by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of 

the Philadelphia Code. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests of the 

Land Bank to convey 1900 E. Lehigh Avenue (the “Property”) to Quay Phong and Mui A. Phong (the 

“Purchasers”). 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank 

that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchasers for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) and a thirty (30) 

year mortgage for Seventy-Four Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Nine and 00/100 U.S. Dollars ($74,999.00) is 

in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia 

City Council.  

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 of the 

Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform any and 

all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate the 

conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time and at any 

time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or 

desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall 

contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or 

appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank 

shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be necessary 

or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel will notify the 

Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the date of such 

modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 149 of 189




